Minutes of a Meeting of Market Deeping Town Council Held on Wednesday 11th November at 7.30pm Zoom meeting code 825 8603 2591 Password 509618

Present:

Cllr Yarham (Chair) Cllr Brookes Cllr Hembrow Cllr Shelton Cllr Mrs Sked Cllr Dolan Cllr Miss Moran Cllr Lester Cllr Mrs Redshaw Cllr Davis Cllr Miss Collins

LCC Cllr Trollope-Bellew, SKDC Cllr Dilks, SKDC Cllr Baxter, SKDC Cllr Miss Stevens, DSJPC Cllr Bowell, DSJPC Cllr Hall, Langtoft pc chair, Cllr Halfhide, representatives of the Deepings Youth Group, representatives of the Deepings Swimming Club, representatives of the Deeping St James signal box group, a representative of the Deepings Business club, other members of the public and the Clerk were also in attendance.

Cllr Yarham welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked attendees to speak in turn. The representatives of the Deepings Swimming Club had presented detailed information about the club, and copies of accounts that the clerk had circulated to members prior to the meeting. Cllrs asked about the remit and structure of the organisation, and noted the proposed 29% rise in fees to the club for hire of the pool and the lack of income through enforced closure during the current year.

Cllr Dilks, as chair of the local Royal British Legion branch, then thanked the council for organising the Remembrance events for this year. He also wished to make a statement regarding the unfounded allegations that had been made against certain councillors before the handing over of public money, and advised attendees that such vilification was in breach of the Charity Commission's code of behaviour.

The representative of the Deepings Business Club then suggested that the launch of an app be considered regarding 'Lighting the Deepings for Christmas' and that businesses and residents should be encouraged to engage with the event.

Cllr Hall then spoke on behalf of the Deeping St James signal box group, explaining their financial difficulties during the year, and the work required to progress the reinstallation of the box. He advised that it would be a centre for educating residents and would be open to all. Cllr Bowell also spoke in support of the project, advising that it would attract visitors to the Deepings.

A resident then requested an update on the cycle rack that had been placed by LCC in the Market Place, and felt that it would be better placed elsewhere.

The Deepings Youth Group youth worker advised members of the positive meeting that had taken place between trustees of the group and Cllrs Yarham and Miss Moran. Another trustee then thanked councillors Yarham and Miss Moran for the meeting and confirmed that they wished to move on from any ill feeling. The Langtoft pc chair then referred to the proposed BP garage that had been approved following appeal. He had spoken with the chief executive of BP, who had confirmed that they will engage with the community regarding the development. Cllr Yarham therefore asked the clerk to facilitate a meeting between BP, the parish councils and district and county councillors for this purpose.

Cllr Mrs Trollope-Bellew then requested that if councillors are in agreement, a letter be sent to herself and the county council to ask for the cycle rack that had been placed without approval in the Market Place to be removed.

Cllr Baxter then advised members that he had provided his report to the clerk, who would forward it on. He advised of the Millfield development being refused and confirmed that the BP planning application appeal had been successful.

Cllr Miss Moran, for SKDC, advised that she had attended an all members briefing on planning where members were informed that the planning committee would concentrate on large estates and developments and leave individual applications to the planning officers. The committee felt that too many applications were being called in but members felt that their voices would not be heard otherwise.

There being no other public speakers, the meeting commenced at 8.02pm.

116. Chairman's Welcome & Introductions

Cllr Yarham welcomed members to the meeting.

The chairman asked members if they wished the meeting to be recorded. It was proposed by Cllr Miss Collins and **RESOLVED** to record the meeting.

117. Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Cllrs Broughton and Neilson.

118. Declarations of Interest under the Localism Act 2011

Cllr Miss Collins declared an interest in agenda item 8, as trustee for the council to the Deepings Youth Group.

119. Acceptance of minutes of a meeting held on 14th October 2020

Cllr Miss Collins asked for it to be noted that with respect to minute 110 she did not want to answer the questions regarding the Deepings Youth Group accounts and she did not recall Cllr Miss Moran stating that the money would not be paid 'at this time'. Cllr Mrs Sked then reminded members that it had been minuted that Cllr Brookes had reminded councillors that accounts provided would be scrutinized. Cllr Dolan then referred to the public session discussion regarding the cycle rack placed by LCC in the Market Place. Cllr Davis advised that Cllr Trollope-Bellew had been advised at that time that the council wished for it to be removed, but Cllr Brookes confirmed that this was a recommendation from the council, and not a motion. It was then proposed by Cllr Shelton, seconded by Cllr Davis and **RESOLVED** with 9 in favour and 2 abstentions to accept the notes of the meeting, as amended above, as a true and accurate record. The Clerk will sign the minutes on behalf of the chairman.

120. Reports: Including reports from Deepings First, Committees (Planning and Highways, Town Hall and Cemetery), Mayor's Diary and the Clerk

Deepings First

Cllr Shelton advised that the examiner who had visited had submitted all the necessary information and has asked for further clarification on only one item. He was pleased to report that the application for the 218home development on the Mill Field had been refused unanimously due to its successful listing in the Neighbourhood plan as a green space. Cllr Shelton confirmed that the plan was now moving into the implementation and planning review stage, after which the plan will be available for referendum. However, due to Covid restrictions a referendum would not be able to take place until May 2021.

Planning & Highways

Cllr Brookes advised members that there were no particular issues to report that had not been covered elsewhere on the agenda.

Town Hall and Cemetery

Cllr Miss Moran advised that the cemetery and new sanctum area were looking very good indeed. The report on the Town Hall had now been received and she will report back on it later in the week.

Mayor's diary

The Mayor attended an event at the Deepings Union Rugby FC to present a cheque to the Macmillan Cancer charity on 31st October,

the opening of the Gardens of Remembrance at the Riverside Park on 1st November, the Remembrance Day service at the Riverside Park on 8th November and the Riverside Park for the rockets to mark the Remembrance day silence.

The deputy Mayor attended a visit to the War Graves in Market Deeping on 25th October, the opening of the Gardens of Remembrance at the Riverside Park on 1st November the Remembrance Day service at the Riverside Park on 8th November.

Clerk's Report

The chair thanked the clerks for their work in organising the Remembrance events.

1. The Playscapes contractors have finished work on the play area and there are outstanding issues regarding making good the edges of the timber framing, and potentially unsafe debris to resolve before payment can be made. Cllr Hembrow and the clerk are liaising with Playscape to resolve this.

- 2. The new restrictions in place from 5th November mean that the Remembrance Sunday service will now take place at the Riverside park. A recorded service will be available for residents to view on line also.
- 3. The Town Hall foyer has been open to the public for the selling of poppies from 26th October to 4th November (2 days less than usual due to the 5th November restrictions).
- 4. The clerk has arranged for the Christmas tree to be collected and delivered to the Market Place for the morning of Friday 27th November. The lighting company has been asked to place the lights in the following week. Update: The column lights are now in position and LITE will return to place the Christmas tree lights after 27th November.
- 5. The PSPO enforcement team have now operated for one month. As they cannot operate in the dark (they are not allowed to collect evidence in the dark), would councillors like them to visit more frequently in the mornings? It was proposed by Cllr Yarham, seconded by Cllr Dolan and **RESOLVED** with 9 in favour and 2 abstentions to request more frequent morning visits. The full report will be passed to the TH&C committee for their next meeting.

121. Correspondence to be noted and resolved upon

Who from	Subject	Date		
Deepings school	Newsletter	16/10/2020		
NALC	Newsletter	16/10/2020		
Public sector exec	Newsletter	16/10/2020		
Public sector exec	Newsletter	18/10/2020		
NALC	On line covid event	19/10/2020		
Public sector exec	Newsletter	19/10/2020		
Rural services network	Newsletter	20/10/2020		
Public sector exec	Newsletter	20/10/2020		
YMCA Lincs	Bulleting	20/10/2020		
NALC	Newsletter	21/10/2020		
LALC	Newsletter	21/10/2020		
Deepings school	Newsletter	22/10/2020		
UK Parliament	Newsletter	22/10/2020		
Public sector exec	Newsletter	22/10/2020		
NALC	Bulletin	23/10/2020		
Healthwatch	Newsletter	23/10/2020		
Public sector exec	Newsletter	23/10/2020		
InvestSK	Newsletter	23/10/2020		
Public sector exec	Newsletter	25/10/2020		
LCC	Admissions policy	29/10/2020		
LALC	Newsletter	27/10/2020		
SKDC arts	Zoom invitation	27/10/2020		
Public sector exec	Newsletter	27/10/2020		
Rural services network	Newsletter	28/10/2020		
Public sector exec	Newsletter	28/10/2020		
Citizen's advice	Awareness letter	28/10/2020		
LCC	Town and parish update	30/10/2020		
Healthwatch	Newsletter	30/10/2020		
Public sector exec	Newsletter	30/10/2020		
NALC	Chief exec bulletin	30/10/2020		
Deepings library	Update	01/11/2020		
NALC	Rebuilding communities	02/11/2020		
NALC	Covid update	02/11/2020		
Public sector exec	Covid update	02/11/2020		
Rural services network	Newsletter	03/11/2020		
NALC	Newsletter	03/11/2020		
Rural services network	Newsletter	04/11/2020		
Neighbourhood alert	Newsletter	04/11/2020		

Correspondence to be noted

NALC	Become a councillor	04/11/2020
UK Parliament	Newsletter	04/11/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	04/11/2020
Stamford arts centre	Newsletter	04/11/2020
Deepings library	Update	05/11/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	05/11/2020
Neighbourhood alert	Scam emails	06/11/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	06/11/2020
Healthwatch	Newsletter	06/11/2020
Deepings school	Newsletter	06/11/2020
NALC	Newsletter	06/11/2020
Neighbourhood alert	Password protection	09/11/2020
LALC	Newsletter	09/11/2020
Public sector exec	Newsletter	06/11/2020
Rural services network	Bulletin	07/11/2020
Public sector exec	Bulletin	07/11/2020
SKDC	Parish update	07/11/2020

Correspondence to be resolved upon:

Who from	Subject	Members' Response
DSJPC	Playscheme – to run as a joint venture	Councillors were concerned at how
		many children a combined scheme
		could accommodate without
		affecting capacity for children from
		Market Deeping. The clerk was
		asked to contact Madcaps and the
		clerk at DSJPC to investigate the way
		forward.

122. Council Finances

a) Income and expenditure by budget cost centre

Members had received a copy of the Council Finances and Omega report prior to the meeting. Cllr Yarham asked if there were any questions. There were none.

b) Accounts to be paid

Cllr Mrs Redshaw asked if the Playground work was completely finished before paying the bill, and members confirmed that it was. Cllr Lester asked for the updates emailed to members to be read out. It was then proposed by Cllr Lester and **RESOLVED** unanimously that the council pay its bills. See appendix A.

c) Preparations for Precept Planning 2021/22

The clerk had issued members with a copy of the Ear Marked Reserves held, and precept sheets detailing each budget line with projected expenditure to the end of the financial year, in addition to the omega report. Cllr Yarham then asked that all committees consider their requirements for the coming financial year, in time for the Finance and Personnel meeting of 25th November, with ratification of decisions to be made at the Full Council meeting of 9th December. The clerk confirmed that she would send a copy of the F&P agenda to all members. Cllr Davis asked that all members worked with the committee chairs to have items ready for the forthcoming meetings.

123.Grant aid: second part of payment to Deepings Youth Group: For members to vote to suspend Standing Orders in order to reconsider the second payment following further investigation

Cllr Yarham proposed that Standing Order no 7 be suspended and it was **RESOLVED** unanimously to do so. He then advised members that he and Cllr Miss Moran had had a very constructive meeting with the chair of the trustees of the youth group and the youth worker. The intention and direction of the group had been clarified and it was confirmed that the chair of the previous meeting, in considering the second part of the payment, had used her casting vote before the meeting with the trustee and youth worker had taken place. Since that meeting both Cllr Yarham and Cllr Miss Moran were now of the opinion that the second part of the payment should be granted. Cllr Miss Collins queried the concepts of precept and grant aid, the clerk explained the powers of the council pursuant to the Local Government Act 1972 in respect of raising a precept and delivering grant aid, and members discussed precepting as a budgeting mechanism. Cllr Davis advised members that at

the last meeting he had abstained from voting, and that he had previously been a trustee of the Youth Group. He cautioned members that the nature of comments logged on social media regarding this issue should lead some members to consider their positions. It was then proposed by Cllr Yarham, seconded by Cllr Lester, and **RESOLVED** with 5 in favour, 1 against and 5 abstentions, to pay the remaining sum of £3750 to the Youth Group.

It was then proposed by Cllr Yarham and **RESOLVED** unanimously to reinstate Standing Orders.

124.Grant aid: Deepings Swimming Club

The clerk had provided detailed accounts, activities and information packs as provided by the club, to all members prior to the meeting. Cllr Lester confirmed that the club had a long standing relationship with the community but, as confirmed by the clerk, there was only £1000 left in the grant aid funding budget for this financial year. Cllr Yarham suggested that the club be considered in the precept request for the coming financial year, and that any payment approved for this year could be taken from Ear Marked Reserves. Cllr Miss Moran noted that there was still £5000 remaining from the SKDC grant to the council that could be used in this respect. The club representatives had explained that they were facing a potential 29% increase in pool fees with the impending take over of facilities by SKDC, and this could lead to potential closure. Members discussed the need to be cautious if the club faces potential closure in January, and the need to be prudent with tax payers' money. Cllr Shelton advised members to consider the projections for the next financial year once SKDC has taken over the leisure facilities.

9.10pm Cllr Lester left the meeting.

Cllrs discussed the issues around this and the need to adhere to the grant aid policy, requiring funds to be returned if unused. It was then proposed by Cllr Davis, seconded by Cllr Dolan and **RESOLVED** with 4 in favour, 4 against and 2 abstentions to allocate £6000 to the club, with £3000 to be paid now and a further £3000 once the club is operational and can swim and create galas. Cllr Yarham, as chair, then used his casting vote in favour of the motion so the initial payment will proceed.

9.17pm Cllr Mrs Sked left the meeting.

125.Grant aid: Deeping St James signal box group

The clerk had provided the completed grant aid application form to members prior to the meeting. Cllr Dolan asked why the previous application had been rejected but members could not recall this. Cllr Davis noted that this was a request for the use of public funds but that no accounts had been provided. It was then proposed by Cllr Yarham, seconded by Cllr Davis and **RESOLVED** with 8 in favour and one against to defer the decision until the December meeting to enable the group to provide account details for consideration.

126.For members to vote on a motion to donate a sum of £200 or any other sum to the Poppy appeal in respect of the wreaths provided

It was proposed by Cllr Davis, seconded by Cllr Dolan and **RESOLVED** unanimously to make a payment of £200.

127.For members to ratify the Planning and Highways committee response to the South Kesteven Local Plan review

Cllr Brookes confirmed that there was a requirement for the plan to be in place for January. The SKDC consultation is setting up the framework for the review and, as it is not being adopted for several years, there will be future opportunities for input. Cllr Shelton had been working on a response on behalf of the Neighbourhood Plan and it was proposed by Cllr Brookes, seconded by Cllr Yarham and **RESOLVED** unanimously to ratify the response of the Neighbourhood plan.

128.For members to receive an update on the Persimmon Homes transfer of allotment and other land

Cllr Shelton confirmed that, in Cllr Broughton's absence, he had been authorized by Cllr Broughton to look at this issue. The section 106 agreement relating to the transfer had raised issues regarding the commuted sum required to maintain the land to be taken on for a period of 25 years. Cllr Shelton had been looking at this point with a professional planner from the Neighbourhood planning committee. It transpires that the council is entitled to receive 50% of the cost of the play equipment to be taken on, and this amounts to £27000. The clerk had provided members with copies of the relevant sections of the S106 agreement, relating to calculations of the commuted sum, as marked up by Cllr Shelton, prior to the meeting. Cllr Shelton pointed out the various sections to be considered and that the drainage and flood plan will be taken into account if material. Cllr Shelton then asked for permission to proceed with the legalities of the transfer subject to Council approval of the commuted sum when known. It was agreed that the clerk could write to Persimmon and ask

them to draw up the legal agreement subject to the later provision of this figure. Cllr Miss Moran asked that Persimmon also make the allotments fit for purpose as they are currently in poor condition.

129.For members to receive an update on Digital Council and to agree when to commence using the .gov.uk email addresses

Cllr Yarham confirmed that the new email addresses could now be used via the website or through Outlook and that he was using his successfully. He then proposed that the new addresses be used with immediate effect. This was seconded by Cllr Miss Moran and RESOLVED with 6 in favour and 3 abstentions. Cllr Yarham confirmed that he will prepare a tutorial for those who would like more help with setting up their new account. The clerk was asked to contact members not present to check if they were able to use the new format. The clerk had provided a copy of a quotation for council owned ipads to members prior to the meeting. Cllr Yarham then advised members that he had obtained the quotation from Apple for a set of 15 ipads that would be instrumental in creating a paper free environment, to include a software package that would allow specific usage. The ipads would be engraved as council property, and would be provided with software for all access to be rescinded if a councillor ceases to be a member. The cost is £12660.36 including the relevant software and insurance. This initiative would modernize the council and reduce the carbon footprint. It would also enable easier sharing of documents prior to and during meetings. Cllr Yarham is currently drafting a limitations of usage schedule. Cllr Brookes advised that all members currently have access to a device as all are accessing remote meetings so there is no rush and more details can be obtained before proceeding. Cllr Miss Moran advised members of how useful such technology is for SKDC meetings. Cllr Yarham advised that there would be training sessions available. It was then proposed by Cllr Yarham, seconded by Cllr Miss Moran and RESOLVED with 7 in favour, one against, and one abstention, to proceed with the purchase of the ipads with the AppleCare package and keyboards for the sum of £12660.36 as detailed in the quotation.

130.For members to receive information and vote on an electricity provider for 2021

The clerk had provided members with a copy of a quotation from 5 providers prior to the meeting. It was then proposed by Cllr Yarham, seconded by Cllr Miss Moran and **RESOLVED** unanimously to proceed with British Gas light from March 2021 when the contract becomes renewable.

131.Forthcoming events: For members to consider arrangements for the Closing of the Remembrance Gardens and the Carols Round the Tree

Members wished to proceed with the Closing of the Gardens ceremony. The clerk was asked to contact a different minister in view of the fact that Rev'd Holding was unable to officiate due to Church of England Covid rulings. The Carols Round the Tree event is not to take place due to current restrictions, but Cllr Miss Moran hoped to invite 6 families with children to each attend a countdown and switching on of the Christmas lights. This could be streamed on Facebook live for residents to view. Some members were concerned with safety issues around children accessing the electric switches for the lamp posts and the clerk and Cllr Miss Moran will liaise with the park keepers to ascertain exactly what is involved.

132. For members to consider and discuss any points raised in the public session.

Cllr Davis proposed that Cllr Trollope-Bellew and the relevant LCC member be contacted to remove the cycle rack placed in the Market Square and for it to be placed in a more appropriate position so that the council could then continue with selecting a cycle rack of their choice as was happening before the new rack arrived. Members **RESOLVED** with 8 in favour and one against for the letters to be written. Cllrs Davis and Yarham also volunteered to attend the meeting regarding the BP garage development. Cllr Yarham declared that he is a friend of the land owner where the garage is to be sited.

133.Confidential/Personnel Matters: Consideration to go into Closed session to discuss:

Staff issues

There were none.

Cllr Yarham then thanked all members for attending and declared the meeting closed at 10.10pm. The next scheduled meeting of the Full Council will be held on Wednesday 9th December 2020, virtual meeting details will be given when the agenda is published.

Chairman's signature.....

Date.....

Attachments: Appendix A

Description	Amount		
Interest from Public Sector Deposit Fund	£	16.73	
Cemetery Fees			
SKDC Community cleaning rebate	£	1,133.60	
	Total	£	1,150.33

Accounts: To be Paid - October (Full Council) 2020

Staff Related	Ex VAT	VAT	VAT		VAT	Description	Payment Type
Employees		£	-	£	9,804.10	Salaries	BACS
Pension contributions		£	-	£	1,748.01	Pension Contributions	BACS
HMRC & NI		£	-	-£	916.84	Tax & NI Contributions	BACS
			Subtotal	£	10,635.27		

Direct Debits	Ex V	AT	VAT		Inc V	/AT	Description
Opus Energy					£	23.58	Park Keepers Electricity
Opus Energy					£	99.55	Town Hall Electricity
Opus Energy	£	30.21	£	1.51	£	31.72	Feeder Pillar
Opus Energy	£	8.05	£	0.40	£	8.45	JE Field Box
Everflow					£	7.47	Town Hall Water
Everflow					£	21.49	Cemetery Water
OneCom	£	90.35	£	18.07	£	108.42	Telephone & Broadband (upto 30/06/20)
All Star (Fuel)	£	61.07	£	12.21	£	73.28	Fuel
AllStar (Fuel)							Fuel
AllStar (Fuel)							Fuel
AMS Vehicle Tracking	£	10.00	£	2.00	£	12.00	Park Keepers Vehicle
Personel Advice & Solutions	£	100.00	£	20.00	£	120.00	HR Support
Peninsula	£	100.58	£	19.11	£	120.29	H&S Support
				Subtotal	£	626.25	

Accounts to be Paid - October (Full Council) 2020 (cont...)

Bacs Transactions Ex VAT VAT Inc VAT	Description
--------------------------------------	-------------

Bates environmental	£	95.00	£	19.00	£	114.00	septic tank emptying
CLH consulting	£	30.00			£	30.00	internal audit of accounts September
SLCC	£	202.00			£		membership for Clerk
Contact Cleaning	£	15.00			£	15.00	Town hall windows
Deeping Direct	£	60.00	£	12.00	£	72.00	Hire of self storage unit 4 wks
LITE	£	2,328.00	£	465.60	£	2,793.00	light installation 50%
Blue Arrow	£	222.60	£	44.52	£	267.12	washer and recoil Rope
Wicksteed	£	109.61	£	21.92	£	131.53	washer/fixing bar and dowell pins
Neighbourhood Plan	£	2,500.00			£	2,500.00	Annual payment agreed P&H 4/11/20
Environment SK	£	533.18	£	106.64	£	639.82	Grass cutting October
Wicksteed	£	172.60	£	14.67	£	187.27	Tyre buffer and cable grip
A&M print	£	49.50	£	9.90	£	59.40	Advertising - remembrance
Playscape Playparks	£	30,630.00	£	6,126.00	£	36,756.00	Repair work to play surface area plus extra drainage
T Beck	£	64.00			£	64.00	Cemetery security
Branch Bros	£	119.47	£	14.69	£	134.16	survey spray paint and timber fixing pegs
Mrs J Blades	£	17.50			£	17.50	Cleaning of town hall
MG Skip hire	£	115.00	£	23.00	£	138.00	skip hire
Alfresco landscaping	£	4,957.50	£	991.50	£	5,949.00	Bed prep, hazel screens and trees
N Carter	£	120.00			£	120.00	PAT testing Town Hall and Park keepers' shed
Howsafe	£	119.90	£	23.98	£	143.88	Park keeper work boots
Chislet Hire	£	231.38	£	39.85	£	271.23	Hire of bobcat skidsteer and roller
Mr A Murray	£	80.00			£	80.00	Public toilet cleaning
Blue Arrow	£	296.80	£	59.36	£	356.16	building survey of town hall
Viking	£	66.87	£	13.37	£	80.24	stationery and toilet paper
Waterside Garden centre	£	12.99			£	12.99	Helleborus
Blue Arrow	£	241.15	£	48.23	£	289.38	Local Council Review 2 copies Annual charge 4 issues
Alfresco landscaping	£	6,742.50	£	1,348.50	£	8,091.00	Ground clearance, excavation, shuttering and pouring concrete
SKDC	£	532.00			£	532.00	PSPO enforcement patrol Nov
Alfresco landscaping	£	1,220.83	£	244.14	£	1,465.00	Planting as per valuation schedule
Inside Out home store	£	32.59	£	6.51	£	39.10	plants
Externiture	£	107.80	£	21.56	£	129.36	additional item to renew polycarbonate upper panes to shelter 6
	•			Subtotal	£	61,680.14	